#### **Brigham Young University Law School**

### **BYU Law Digital Commons**

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2018

## State of Utah Plaintiff/Appellee vs. JULIUS OCHIENG OLOLA Defendant/Appellant: Brief of Appellant

**Utah Court of Appeals**

### **INTRODUCTION**

### Nature And Context Of Dispute And Reasons Why The Defendant Should Prevail On Appeal.

The defendant claims there was insufficient evidence to support the convictions for driving under the influence of alcohol; that the court faked the jury trial; that the evidence supporting his conviction was fabricated and manufactured. If any of these arguments have merit, the defendant would be entitled to a reversal.

This brief is submitted in the spirit of *Anders v. California*, 386 U.S. 793, 97 S.Ct. 1396 (1967); and *State v. Wells*, 13 P.3d 1056 (Utah Ct. App. 2000).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW, STANDARD OF APPELLATE REVIEW, PRESERVATION OF ISSUES AND GROUNDS FOR APPEAL.

- I. A. Issue: Was there sufficient evidence to support the verdict?
- **B. Standard of Review:** The standard of review for sufficiency claims is highly deferential—"[w]e will reverse a jury verdict for insufficient evidence only if we determine that reasonable minds could not have reached the verdict." *State v. Lingmann*, 2014 UT App 45, ¶ 18, 320 P.3d 1063, 1069 citing *State v. Workman*, 2005 UT 66, ¶ 29, 122 P.3d 639.
- **C. Preservation**: The defendant moved for directed verdict. R.196, 572-573. The motion was denied. R.196, 574.

- II. A. Issue: Was there any evidence from which to conclude that the trial was faked or that the evidence supporting his conviction was fabricated and manufactured?
- **B.** Standard of Review: Presumably the standard of review would be that set forth above in I.B, i.e., that the defendant must demonstrate that there was legitimate, bona fide, material and substantive evidence presented from which reasonable minds could reach the verdict.
- **C. Preservation:** Presumably the record would be preserved as set forth above in I.C.

#### CONTROLLING CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES.

The controlling constitutional provisions, statues and rules are included in Addendum A.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

# PROCEDURAL HISTORY NECESSARY TO UNDERSTAND ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW AND DISPOSITION IN THE COURT BELOW.

This is a criminal appeal from a final judgment of conviction in the Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, State of Utah. After a one day jury trial, May 4, 2016, the jury found the defendant guilty of Driving Under The Influence Of Alcohol/Drugs, a 3rd Degree Felony, a third degree felony, in violation of Utah Code § 41-6A-502. R.200, 615-616. After excusing the jury, the trial court then found the defendant guilty of Driving On a Suspended or Revoked License, a Class B Misdemeanor; Being an Alcohol Restricted Driver, Prohibited From Operating A Vehicle While Having Any Measurable Or Detectable Amount Of Alcohol, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-530; and operating a vehicle without an ignition interlock system, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-518.2. R.197, 622-623.

Based on the defendant's conviction of Driving Under The Influence Of Alcohol/Drugs a 3rd Degree Felony, the court sentenced the defendant to an indeterminate term of not to exceed five years in the Utah State Prison. R.273-275, at 273, Addendum B. On the Driving On Suspension/Revocation Alcohol Related charge, § , § 53-3-227(3)(a), a Class B Misdemeanor, the defendant was sentenced to a term of 180 day(s), with the total time suspended. Based on the defendant's conviction of ALCOHOL RESTRICTED DRIVERS, § 41-6a-530, a Class B Misdemeanor, the court

sentenced the defendant to a term of 180 day(s), with the total time suspended. Based on the defendant's conviction of INTERLOCK RESTRICTED DRIVER OPERATING VEHICLE Without an interlock SYSTEM, a Class B Misdemeanor, the defendant was sentenced to a term of 180 day(s), with the total time suspended. R.273-275. The defendant untimely timely appealed to the Utah Court of Appeals. R.299-303. This Court summarily dismissed the appeal. R.306-307. On motion of the defendant, on July 23, 2018, the trial court reinstated the time to appeal. R.312-347, 358-360. On July 24, 2018, the defendant timely appealed. R.361-362.

The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(2)(e).

# STATEMENT OF FACTS NECESSARY TO UNDERSTAND ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW.

Mark Barrett indicated he was driving in the area of South Salt Lake on September 6, 2015, during the early morning hours headed eastbound on Thirty-Third South by the Salt Lake Detention Center. R.504. He noticed a red SUV sitting about a quarter of the way into the intersection, even though the light was green, blocking his path of travel. R.505. Mr. Barrett honked and the vehicle started moving, making a left turn heading west on Thirty-Third. R.505-506. He watched the SUV turn and then go over the curb a little bit by the bus stop by the jail, which concerned him. R.506. So Mr. Barrett at that followed the SUV into the jail parking lot and called the police non-emergency number.

Id. He remained there until the police arrived, watching the vehicle, from which no one emerged during that time. R.506-507

Mr. Barrett observed that the SUV's blinkers were turned on, and the headlights were flashed in an effort, apparently, to get the gate to open. R.507. The police arrived within about fifteen minutes. Id. He never saw the driver of the SUV vehicle. Id. He remained about 150 feet away and could not see inside the vehicle. R.508.

Officer Coby Coggle, a veteran South Salt Lake Police Officer testified to his extensive training and experience. R.510-513, Addendum C. He indicated for the past three years he had been working alcohol and DUI enforcement. R.513. He was on duty the early morning of September 6, 2015, assigned to South Salt Lake. R.513-514. Dispatch advised of a reckless driver call at the intersection of 900 West and 3300 South. R.514. The call was received at 3:20 a.m., and the officer arrived at the parking lot of the jail on the southeast corner of 900 West and 3300 South 3:23 a.m. Id. Dispatch indicated a red Durango was stopped in front of the service entrance in the parking lot. Id.

Officer Coggle located the red Durango stopped, as indicated, in front of the service entrance in the parking lot at the very east side and the south end of the administrative parking lot. R.514-515. The vehicle was just at the entrance to the service road facing a closed gate. R.515. The vehicle was stopped at the time, and he parked his car and approached. Id. The engine was running. Id. He saw the lights turn on and off. R.550. He peered into the car with his flashlight on the passenger side, saw that there

was two occupants inside, and as he did so, the driver attempted to manipulate the gear shift. R.516,549,551. Thinking the driver was going to try to leave or take off, he ran around to the driver's side. Id. He identified the driver as the defendant in court. Id.

The vehicle window was already partially down and the officer noticed the odor of alcohol. Id. Once he opened the door, he testified that, "it was so strong in the air I could taste it." R.517. Officer Coggle testified as follows:

Mr. Olola was completely oblivious to me even standing at the window. He was so involved in trying to manipulate the vehicle that he didn't even realize I was standing there. He was trying to put it into gear, but from my perception, he wasn't pressing on the brake so it wouldn't go out of park. So he flashed the brights. He turned the blinker on and off. He manipulated the windshield wipers. He - he was touching everything, and then he kept trying to put it into gear, it wouldn't go. I - and again, the window's down. So I'm standing there and I'm trying to speak to him and he's not acknowledging me at all.

R.517. With flashlight in hand and speaking in a loud voice, Mr. Olola did not respond to the officer, except at one point where he looked blankly at him, then went back to trying to put the vehicle in gear. R.518. Once backup officers arrived, Officer Coggle opened the door. Id. Mr. Olola appeared to be intoxicated. Id. This was determined by the officer's observation of the overwhelming odor of alcohol in the vehicle, the defendant's depressed facial features and heavy eyelids, eyes half open, red bloodshot and glazed eyes, as well as speech so slurred he had to be asked several times to repeat things in order to understand him. R.518,551. The passenger was so intoxicated he could not speak. R.551. Mr. Olola pointed and said he was going to West Valley, the

opposite direction of where he pointed. R.518. He spoke very slowly, to the point that Officer Coggle had a hard time hearing, and slurred his words which were mixed together. R.520.

Officer Swazo had arrived and was on the passenger side, and when Officer Hunsaker arrived, they asked Mr. Olola to get out. R.521. Upon request Mr. Olola produced his ID card, fumbling through his wallet in slow motion. Id. He "poured" himself out of the car, turning and "kind of just slid(ing) out of the seat right onto (his) feet," usually, according to the officer, a good indication of someone who is intoxicated. Id. They had to guide Mr. Olola. Id. It took him a second to get his bearings. Id. He was in between Officers Coggle and Swazo and, although he could walk straight forward, turning, pivoting seemed beyond his ability. R.522. When they went to turn him to place him in handcuffs, just pivoting around, he completely lost his balance, and had to be supported by his arms. Id.

Having observed all these signs of intoxication, Officer Coggle testified that he would normally ask the person to perform field sobriety tests. Id. He did not in this case. Id. He testified,

All my observations, coupled with my previous experience of DUIs, I determined not only, one, was it alcohol which was the impairing factor and not drugs, and two, he was not safe to operate a vehicle, and three, well beyond the legal limit.

R.522. The Officer did not believe he could have safely do the field sobriety tests. R.523. He could not communicate instructions, and Mr. Olola could barely walk, let alone do the FSTs. Id. Based on years of extensive training and experience as a police officer, especially doing DUI enforcement, he had seen this behavior many times before, and so based thereupon, he concluded that Mr. Olola was many times over the legal .08 limit, handcuffed him and placed him in the back of his car. R.524.

The officers impounded the SUV vehicle. Id. The impound inventory yielded many open containers, an open cup in the center console, and behind the passenger seat a jug of juice Officer Hunsaker located, the contents of which smelled of alcohol. R.525.

Mr. Olola was then taken to the South Salt Lake Police Station. Id. Officer Coggle believed only alcohol was involved and therefore requested a breath test. R.525-526. After reading the necessary admonitions to Mr. Olola, he was requested to and agreed to a breath test. R.526. The officer testified he had operated this particular this intoxilyzer machine somewhere around 500 times during the course of his career. R.527-528. He was trained and certified in the use of this machine. R.528. Exhibit 4 is the initial intoxilyzer certification issued initially in 2005 by the police academy and last renewed in 2016. R.528-529.

Officer Coggle testified that the intoxilyzer machine has a series of internal diagnostics. R.530. If any of the diagnostics fail, it will shut down and prevent a test from being taken. Id. He testified as follows:

So you'll start the machine. It'll do a self-check diagnostic. It does a circuitry check. It does the RF check as I described. I don't have the list in front of me. I forget the exact name of all the checks. It'll do a series of three air blanks before it will allow you to submit a test. And what that's doing is it will suck in the ambient air and check for any alcohol in the ambient air. If for some reason it, during those tests any alcohol is detected, the machine will shut down and is inoperable.

R.530.

Officer Coggle started the machine and it cycled through the process described. Id. There were no errors displayed. R.531. Prior to administering a breath test he observed a "deprivation period," i.e., he a period where sits with the individual for fifteen minutes immediately prior to the test being administered to make sure that they either don't consume or regurgitate anything. Id. If an individual has consumed alcohol recently, there may still be residual mouth alcohol. Id. In this case, the intoxilyzer 8000 is equipped with something called a slope detector which is supposed to prevent any mouth alcohol being taken into the machine. Id. However to make sure that there is no mouth alcohol present, he observes this 15 minute deprivation period. Id. This is also to determine if the individual has regurgitated. Id. If that were to occur, the regurgitation might give a higher reading than would be accurate. R.531-532.

Officer Coggle observed the "deprivation period" with Mr. Olola. R.532. He began by asking him to open his mouth to look inside. R.533. He asked if he had anything in his mouth, at which point he advised dispatch that he was starting his deprivation period, giving them the time that's on the machine as a double check. R.533-

534. During this deprivation period, the officer did not observe Mr. Olola drink anything, nor did he regurgitate. R.568. He started the deprivation period at three forty-eight and the test was administered at four zero five, a deprivation period of 17 minutes. R.533. Officer Coggle opined, without objection, that alcohol that detected through the test had been consumed prior to his interaction with defendant. R.568.

Officer Coggle operated the machine, which functioned properly, observing the deprivation period, et cetera. R.533-534. The result was 0.29 (State's Exhibit 1,). R.534. The State introduced Exhibits 2 and 3, the intoxilyzer maintenance affidavits, admissible, as stated on the record, under Utah Code § 41-6-44(3) and *Murray v. Hall, infra*, without objection. R.535, 540. Exhibits 1 through 4 were admitted and published without objection. R.539. The certifications of the machine, Exhibit 2, bore the date 8/13/2015 and Exhibit 3, 9/15/2015. R.541. The date of offense was 9/6/2015. Id. So the certifications bookended the date of offense. Id.

Based upon all of the circumstances, from the parked car to the taking of the intoxilyzer test, Officer Coggle determined to charge Mr. Olola with driving under the influence of alcohol. R.542-543.

On cross-examination, Officer Coggle admitted that there were four officers present, and he had the ability to require the field sobriety tests with another officer standing next to Mr. Olola, which is how it is usually done. R.556. But because Mr. Olola could not understand the instructions, among other reasons, he did not give the full

array of FSTs. R.556-560. Defense counsel did not query as to why those tests were not given. Defense counsel further cross-examined Officer Coggle regarding his knowledge of the intoxilyzer machine. R.560-562. The officer agreed that he was trained merely as an operator, not as a technician, and was not fully conversant with its inner workings. R.561-562. He testified that standard procedure is to perform only one test, and that is all that was done, with no confirmation test. R.562-563. Officer Coggle had no recollection of giving Mr. Olola Miranda warnings. R.563. No testimony was elicited, however, as to any law enforcement questions or the defendant's answers. R.409-653, passim.

The State rested. R.568. Final jury instructions were discussed and agreed upon. R.571. The defendant moved for a directed verdict "for the record." R.572-573. The court denied the motion. R.574. The defense called no witnesses. Id. Defense counsel indicated that he had spoken to Mr. Olola regarding his right to testify, recommending that he not do so. R.574-575. Counsel indicated that he was going to follow that advice. Id. The trial court further engaged in the following colloquy:

THE COURT: All right. So Mr. Olola, do you understand that today is the day for your trial and you have that right to testify today. Your attorney's recommending that you don't testify. What do you want to do?

DEFENDANT OLOLA: I will follow his recommendation.

THE COURT: All right. So you don't want to testify today?

DEFENDANT OLOLA: No.

R.575.

The jury found the defendant guilty of Driving Under The Influence Of Alcohol/Drugs, a 3rd Degree Felony, a third degree felony, in violation of Utah Code § 41-6A-502. R.200, 615-616.

After excusing the jury, the trial court then found the defendant guilty of Driving On a Suspended or Revoked License, a Class B Misdemeanor; Being an Alcohol Restricted Driver, Prohibited From Operating A Vehicle While Having Any Measurable Or Detectable Amount Of Alcohol, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-530; and operating a vehicle without an ignition interlock system, in violation of Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-518.2. R.197, 622-623. The documentation, Exhibits 5 through 8, all appear to be in proper order and support the court's finding.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The defendant's position is that the evidence was insufficient to support the verdict.

There simply is no evidence that the trial was faked or that the evidence supporting his conviction was fabricated and manufactured.

#### POINT I

### THERE WAS INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT THE VERDICT.

The standard of review is clearly stated as follows:

In evaluating sufficiency claims, we view "the evidence and all inferences which may reasonably be drawn from it in the light most favorable to the verdict." State v. Shumway, 2002 UT 124, ¶ 15, 63 P.3d 94. Accordingly,

the standard of review for sufficiency claims is highly deferential—"[w]e will reverse a jury verdict for insufficient evidence only if we determine that reasonable minds could not have reached the verdict." *State v. Workman*, 2005 UT 66, ¶ 29, 122 P.3d 639 (citation and internal quotation marks omitted).

State v. Lingmann, supra, 2014 UT App 45, ¶ 18, 320 P.3d 1063.

One argument might go to the sufficiency of the evidence regarding the intoxilyzer. The intoxilyzer affidavits, certifications, and results were admitted, Exhibits 1 through 4 were admitted and published without objection. R.539. "(I)n place of the officer's testimony, § 41–6–44.3 permits the admission of affidavits regarding the maintenance of a specific breathalyzer as evidence of the proper functioning of that breathalyzer machine and the accuracy of the ampoules." *Murray City v. Hall, supra*, 663 P.2d 1314, 1320 (Utah 1983). This bookending practice is still the standard regarding the intoxilyzer. The referenced § 41–6–44.3 has been renumbered as § 41-6a-515, which states, in pertinent part,

- 2) In any action or proceeding in which it is material to prove that a person was operating or in actual physical control of a vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug or operating with a blood or breath alcohol content statutorily prohibited, documents offered as memoranda or records of acts, conditions, or events to prove that the analysis was made and the instrument used was accurate, according to standards established in Subsection (1), are admissible if:
- (a) the judge finds that they were made in the regular course of the investigation at or about the time of the act, condition, or event; and
- (b) the source of information from which made and the method and circumstances of their preparation indicate their trustworthiness.

Utah Code Ann. § 41-6a-515. What occurred in this instance is that counsel for the State recited the necessary findings, to which defense counsel agreed:

MS. DAVIS: Okay. So it would be that the calibration test with the intoxilyzer used in this case was performed according to the standards established by the Commissioner of Public Safety, that they were prepared in the regular course of business, and they were prepared contemporaneously with the events therein and that the source of information of these affidavits was made - were made and the method and circumstances of preparation were such to indicate their trustworthiness.

MR. SNOW: And I'm fine with that language. . . .

R. 538. The trial court then adopted the language recited. Id.

The remaining insufficiency argument can be stated no more strongly than did defense counsel in the motion for a directed verdict, as follows:

For the record, I move at this time for a directed verdict as far as it relates to count one, driving under the influence. I don't believe the state's presented a case at this point that the jury should have to decide whether or not Mr. Olola was driving under the influence of alcohol. The only evidence we do have is a breath ticket. We don't have a - we have a certified operator of that machine. We don't have anyone here to verify the machine was working on that day in question. The only other evidence is the officer's subjective testimony of impairment 1 as well as the testimony of the witness who did not see who was driving the vehicle, could not testify as far as impairment.

R.572-573.

Based upon the record and the foregoing analyses, undersigned counsel submits the argument to this Court to find in accordance with the merits stated.

#### **POINT II**

# THE TRIAL WAS FAKED OR THAT THE EVIDENCE SUPPORTING HIS CONVICTION WAS FABRICATED AND MANUFACTURED.

Undersigned counsel can cite to no evidence or indication, either within the body of the record or not included therein, which would indicate that the trial was faked or that the evidence supporting his conviction was fabricated and manufactured in any way.

### **CONCLUSION**

The foregoing analysis is submitted to	o this Honor	able Court for its consideration.
Da	ted this	day of January, 2019.

HERSCHEL BULLEN, Attorney for Appellant

#### **CERTIFICATE OF RULE 21 & 24 COMPLIANCE**

Appellant certifies pursuant to Rule 24(f)(1)(C) Utah R. App. P. that the foregoing principal brief of appellant contains less than 4,000 words.

Appellant further certifies pursuant to Rule 21(g) that the filing herein contains no non-public information.

HERSCHEL BULLEN
Attorney for Defendant/ Appellant