Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2018

STATE OF UTAH, Plaintiff/Appellee, v. JULIUS OCHIENG OLOLA, Defendant/Appellant. : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. Sufficiency of the evidence. Olola makes two insufficiency claims involving the intoxilyzer. The first claim is devoid of any legal analysis,

(B)

6

6

6

د)

٢

6

٢

leaving the State and this Court to intuit the targeted insufficiency. The law he cites and the sidebar statement he quotes do not identify his concern. The law permits use of technician affidavits in lieu of officer testimony to establish a rebuttable presumption that a particular intoxilyzer was functioning properly at a relevant time, but only upon an affirmative assertion of four findings. The quoted sidebar is the prosecutor's correct statement of those findings, with which defense counsel and the court agreed. Without some analysis from Olola, the State is unable to discern his complaint. Thus, the claim is inadequately briefed, and this Court should deny review.

0

٢

0

٢

0

0

0

٢

His second claim quotes trial counsel's argument from his directed verdict motion in the district court. Counsel challenged the evidence of his intoxication because no one was called "to verify the machine was working on that day in question." But it is well-established that compliance with Utah Code Ann. §41-6a-515, which invokes a rebuttable presumption that an intoxilyzer was functioning properly, eliminates the need for an officer to testify about the machine's functioning. Additional testimony was not required because Olola did not rebut that presumption.

II. Fake trial and fabricated evidence. Olola's appellate counsel identifies two additional claims he attributes to Olola: that the trial "court faked the jury trial" and that the evidence upon which he was convicted was

"fabricated and manufactured." Citing to "the spirit of *Anders*[,]" counsel states that he cannot cite to any evidence supporting either claim. This is not an *Anders* case. Further, this Court should not review Olola's claims because they are inadequately briefed, and counsel concedes that they lack merit.

ARGUMENT

I.

Olola has not shown that the DUI evidence was insufficient.

Olola maintains that there was insufficient evidence on which to base his DUI conviction. In a directed verdict motion made at the close of the State's case, defense counsel argued that because there was no live testimony to "verify the machine [intoxilyzer] was working on that day in question[,]" there was insufficient impairment evidence to permit the case to go to the jury. R572-73.

Olola repeats that argument on appeal but only after first implying that there was something wrong with the statutorily-required findings on which the admission of the technician affidavits rested. Aplt.Br. 12-14. Olola does not adequately brief this claim. Rather, he merely concludes that the evidence was insufficient to support the verdict without giving any legal analysis or argument defining and addressing his perceived insufficiency. This Court should therefore refuse to review this claim.

6

ن)

٢

6

٢

6.

The directed verdict argument that Olola then repeats on appeal is that the evidence was insufficient to submit the case to the jury because no one appeared at trial to verify that the intoxilyzer was working on the day Olola was tested. But such testimony was rendered unnecessary because the admission of the technician affidavits triggered a rebuttable presumption that the intoxilyzer was functioning properly. Because Olola did not rebut the presumption, there was sufficient evidence to support his conviction without

the need for the added testimony.

A. Olola's insufficiency claim concerning the findings for the statutory presumption is inadequately briefed.

Olola first appears to challenge the findings that formed the basis for admission at trial of the documentation regarding the intoxilyzer's functioning. Aplt.Br. 13-14. But he has not adequately briefed the claim because he fails to articulate his challenge or to provide any reasoned analysis.

The argument section of an appellate brief must contain "the contentions and reasons of the appellant with respect to the issues presented, *including the grounds for reviewing any issue not preserved in the trial court*, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied on." Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(9) (emphasis added). "Implicitly, rule 24(a)(9) requires not just bald citation to authority but development of that authority and reasoned

-11-Digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, BYU. Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

۲

0

0

٨

0

٨

٢

۲

(je)

Ì

)

analysis based on that authority." *State v. Thomas*, 961 P.2d 299, 305 (Utah 1998). An "issue is inadequately briefed when the overall analysis of the issue is so lacking as to shift the burden of research and argument to the reviewing court." *State v. Heywood*, 2015 UT App 191, ¶35, 357 P.3d 565. When a party does nothing more than "cursorily" raise an issue, this Court should "decline[] to address" it on appeal. *State v. Arave*, 2009 UT App 278, ¶12 n.3, 220 P.3d 182, *rev'd on other grounds*, 2011 UT 84, ¶3, 268 P.3d 163; *see also State v. Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶11, 108 P.3d 710 ("A brief which does not fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments may be disregarded or stricken by the court."); *accord State v. Garner*, 2002 UT App 234, ¶12, 52 P.3d 467 ("When a party fails to offer any meaningful analysis regarding a claim, we decline to reach the merits.").

Olola's first argument does nothing more than "cursorily" raise an issue. He claims that the argument involves "the sufficiency of the evidence regarding the intoxilyzer." Aplt.Br. 13. Then he identifies the statutory rebuttable presumption afforded qualified documentary evidence and quotes the prosecutor's recitation of the four statutorily-required findings to invoke the functionality presumption. *Id.* at 13-14. But he does not provide any analysis concerning any alleged insufficiency of the evidence.

6

۷

6

6

۲

6

6

6

 \bigcirc

Nor is any insufficiency apparent on the face of the argument. The quoted remarks from the prosecutor are taken from a sidebar requested by defense counsel. Counsel had no objection either to the admission of the supporting documents or to the trial court's entry of the requisite findings. R536-38. He only wanted to be sure that when the findings were stated before the jury, there was no mention "that the machine was working on that day" or that "there's the rebuttable presumption that this test was accurate." R536. So, the prosecutor then stated the findings he would ask the court to make, defense counsel agreed "with that language[,]" and when the jury returned, the judge made the requisite four findings. R535-39. The sidebar recitation that Olola quotes accurately reflects the four required findings and mirrors the findings thereafter made in front of the jury-findings that defense counsel agreed to. Without any analysis by Olola beyond the generic conclusion that there was "insufficient evidence to support the verdict," the State and the Court are left to guess how the record evidence is in some way insufficient. Thus, this Court should reject the claim as inadequately briefed.

0

0

0

٢

0

٢

٨

٥

B. The evidence sufficed to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the intoxilyzer was working on the day of Olola's test.

Olola's second insufficiency argument fails on its merits. "The standard of review for a sufficiency claim is highly deferential to a jury verdict." *State v. Workman*, 2005 UT 66, ¶29, 122 P.3d 639. In reviewing the

-13-Digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, BYU. Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors. sufficiency of the evidence, the Court must view the evidence in the light most favorable to the jury verdict. *See id.* The Court will reverse the jury's decision only if it determines "that reasonable minds could not have reached the verdict." *See id.* (internal quotation marks omitted).

Olola claims that there was insufficient evidence because there was no one called "to verify the machine was working on that day in question." Aplt.Br. 14. Without that testimony, he argues, there was not enough evidence to establish that he was driving while impaired by alcohol. *Id*. The claim fails because the law clearly permits the State to establish this factor through documentary evidence, rather than live testimony, which occurred here.

Section 41-6a-515 permits the use of affidavits regarding the maintenance of a specific intoxilyzer as evidence of the machine's proper functioning. Utah Code Ann. §41-6a-515 (West 2013) (in Add. A). *See Murray City v. Hall*, 663 P.2d 1314, 1320 (Utah 1983) (addressing a prior version of Utah Code Ann. §41-6a-515). The statute "'defines th[e] conditions under which a prosecutor may invoke a rebuttable presumption that breath test evidence is accurate and reliable.'" *Salt Lake City v. George*, 2008 UT App 257, ¶18, 189 P.3d 1284 (quoting *State v. Garcia*, 965 P.2d 508, 515 (Utah App 1998)). Subsections (1) and (2) establish the standards and conditions which must be

80.1

6

6

6

6

6

6

Ġā.

met before the presumption takes effect. Utah Code Ann. §41-6a-515(1) and (2). Pursuant to those subsections, the trial court is required to make four affirmative findings as a prerequisite to invoking the presumption:

٨

Ø

٢

٢

٢

0

٢

(1) the calibration and testing for accuracy of the breathalyzer and the ampoules were performed in accordance with the standards established by the Commissioner of Public Safety, (2) the affidavits were prepared in the regular course of the public officer's duties, (3) that they were prepared contemporaneously with the act, condition or event, and (4) the "source of information from which made and the method and circumstance of their preparation were such as to indicate their trustworthiness."

Bountiful City v. Maestas, 788 P.2d 1062, 1065 (Utah App. 1990) (quoting Hall, 663 P.2d at 1320). When all the conditions are met and the four requirements are stated on the record, then a presumption arises that the breath test evidence is accurate and reliable, and the prosecutor need not produce testimony from the officer responsible for testing the accuracy of the intoxilyzer equipment. *State v. Turner*, 2012 UT App 189, ¶17, 283 P.3d 527; *George*, 2008 UT App 257, ¶17; *Maestas*, 788 P.2d at 1065.

The prosecutor here offered technician affidavits establishing that the intoxilyzer was functioning properly 24 days before Olola's test and 9 days afterward. R540-41. The trial court determined that all the conditions had been met, made the necessary affirmative findings on the record before the jury, and admitted the documents. R535-39. Thus, the rebuttable

presumption arose, and Olola offered no evidence to rebut it. Rather, defense counsel agreed with the findings. *Id*. Therefore, testimony from the technician was not necessary for Olola's conviction. *See Turner*, 2012 UT App 189, ¶17 (recognizing the threshold showing of intoxilyzer reliability may be met by either the statutory presumption or the testing officer's testimony).

Moreover, Cody Coggins, a certified operator of the machine, explained how problems with the intoxilyzer's functioning would automatically shut the machine off and prevent him from performing a test. R529-35. Such problems did not occur during Olola's testing, and the officer confirmed, based on his extensive experience with the machine, that it operated as it was supposed to. *Id.* Accordingly, there was ample evidence on which the jury could decide that the intoxilyzer was working properly when Olola was tested without the need to call the testing technician as a witness. Olola's claim is therefore meritless.¹

6

6

6

٢

6

6

6

6

6

65

¹ In any event, there was ample evidence absent the intoxilyzer results to establish the alternative that Olola was under the influence of alcohol "to a degree which rendered him incapable of safely operating a vehicle." R223-24.

This Court should not reach the issues in Point II of Olola's brief, either because appellate counsel inadequately briefs them or because he concedes that they are meritless.

In Point II, Olola's counsel lists two additional issues that Olola wanted raised: (1) the trial court "faked" the jury trial; and (2) the evidence on which he was convicted was "fabricated and manufactured." Aplt.Br. 1, 15. Appellate counsel merely states that he can cite to nothing that supports either claim. *Id.* at 15. This Court should not address these issues because they are inadequately briefed and appellate counsel concedes they have no merit.

Counsel maintains that he submitted his brief "in the spirit" of Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967), and State v. Wells, 13 P.3d 1056 (Utah 2000). Aplt.Br. 1, 15. But this is not an Anders case, and the brief does not comply with the requirements of Anders and State v. Clayton, 639 P.2d 168 (Utah 1981). Most notably, Olola's counsel did not undertake the task of briefing the identified issues and objectively demonstrating that they are frivolous, has not indicated that he furnished a copy of the brief to Olola in time to permit him to present the issues himself, and has not sought to withdraw. See State v. Prater, 2017 UT 13, ¶43, n.7, 392 P.3d 398; Wells, 13 P.3d at 1058-59. Accordingly, this is not an Anders case. See State v. Balfour, 2018 UT App 79, ¶20, n.5, 418 P.3d 79 (refusing to consider unbriefed issues purportedly raised

0

0

٢

0

0

0

٢

٨

۲

Ì

under Anders when appellate counsel does not follow the procedures Anders requires), cert. denied 429 P.3d 465 (Utah).

Instead, this Court should not address these issues because their onesentence presentation is inadequate under this Court's briefing rule. *See id.; see also Green*, 2005 UT 9, ¶11 ("A brief which does not fully identify, analyze, and cite its legal arguments may be disregarded or stricken by the court."); *Arave*, 2009 UT App 278, ¶12, n.3 (merely "cursorily" raising an issue is inadequate).

Review may also be denied because appellate counsel concedes that the claims lack merit. *See, e.g., State v. Cecil,* 2012 UT App 280, ¶8, n.2, 288 P.3d 22 (declining to address issues defense counsel conceded lacked merit). The record supports that concession. The claims appear to have arisen from Olola's misunderstanding of the proceedings below. *See* R284-89, 299-301 (in Add. B). Before perfecting this appeal, Olola attempted to obtain review of this and another criminal case, arguing what he viewed as "serious unlawful" "irregularities[.]" R284. These included his belief that when his DUI trial supposedly occurred, he was instead subjected to a preliminary hearing, causing his subsequent sentencing for DUI to occur before he was actually tried. R283-86. Having never been tried, Olola claims he was imprisoned "without a 'lawful conviction.'" R300.

6

6

٢

(iii)

6

6

٧

6

6

0

0

()

 \oslash

٢

٢

٢

But the record conclusively refutes his misunderstanding, showing a preliminary hearing held December 10, 2015, a jury trial held May 4, 2016, and sentencing held August 22, 2016. *See* R34-35 (minutes of preliminary hearing), 193-89 (minutes of jury trial), 273-75 (minutes of sentencing) (in Add. C). Thus, the record supports counsel's concession, and review is not warranted. *See Cecil*, 2012 UT App 280, ¶8, n.2.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should affirm Olola's DUI conviction.